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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

DIRECTORS RESPONSIBILITY STATBMENT
for theyear ended 3I March 2019

I)irectors' responsibility statement

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements of the
Sincephetelo Motor Vehicle Accident Fund comprising the statement of financial position at 3 I March 2019,
the statements of comprehensive income, changes in reserves and cash flows for the year then ended, and the
notes to the financial statements, which include a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory notes, in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards, and in tlie manner required
by the Motor Vehicle Accidents Act of 1991 and the Public Enterprisis (Control and Monitoring) Act. The
directors are also responsible for the report ofthe directors and the report ofthe actuaries.

The directors are also responsible for such internal conffol as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error and
for maintaining adequate accounting records and an effective system of risk management as well as the
preparation of the supplementary schedules included in these financial statements.

The directors' have made an assessment of the ability of the Sincephetelo Motor Vehicle Accident Fund to
continue as a going concern and have no reason to believe that the business will not be a going concern in the
year ahead.

The auditor is responsible for reporting on whether the financial statements are fairly presented in accordance
with the applicable financial reporting framework.

Approval of financial statements

Accident Fund as set out on pages 6 to 63, were
2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

&k (n*l l1
Chairman

Board member

Date

Date

Date

rql,q-]t:

aqle*/;,fi,i
Chief Executive
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02 August 2019

Report of the independent auditors'

To the members of Sincephetelo Motor Vehicle Accitlent Fund

Opinion

We have audited the financial statements of Sincephetelo Motor Vehicle Accident Fund which comprise the
statement of financial position as at 3 I March 2019, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in
reserves and cash flows forthe year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, which include a summary
ofsignificant accounting policies and other explanatory notes, as set out on pages I I to 63 and the report of
the directors as set out on pages 6 to 9.

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of
Sincephetelo Motor Vehicle Accident Fund as at 31 March 2019, and its financial performance and cash flows
for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Motor Vehicle Accidents Act of 1991.

Basisfor Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (lSAs). Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described inthe Auditors' Responsibilitiesfor the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Fund in accordance with the Eswatini Institute of
Accountants Code of Professional Conduct (ESIA Code) and other independence requirements applicable to
performing audits of financial statements in Eswatini. We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in
accordance with the ESIA Code and in accordance with other ethical requirements applicable to performing
audits in Eswatini. The ESIA Code is consistent with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountanti
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountanrs (Parts A and B). We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors'
responsibility statement, the report of the actuaries and the detailed income statement, which we obtained prior
to the date of this repoft. Other information does not include the financial statements and our auditors' report
thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express an audit
opinion or any form ofassurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or
knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have
performed on the other information obtained prior to the date of this auditors' report, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in
this regard.

KPMG Ghartered Accountants (Swaziland)
Umkhiwa House
195 Kal Grant Street, Mbabane
PO Box 33.1 , Mbabane, H100, Swaziland

KPMG, a Swailand partnership is a member firm ot the KPMG
network of independent member firms atlitiated with
KPMG lnternational, a Swiss cooperative.

Telephone +268 2405 7000
Fax +2ffi2404 1929
e-Mail kpmg@kpmg.co.sz

Managing Partner RTSithebe

Partnersr VMNkabindze REWebb
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Responsibilities of the Directorsfor the Financial Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner required by the Motor Vehicle
AccidentFundActof 1991, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
erTor.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the Fund's ability to continue
as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis
of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Fund or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Auditors' Responsibilitiesfor the Audil of the Financial Statentents

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatemen! whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain
professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identifu and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or elror, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence
that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

a

a

a

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to desigrr audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.

Conclude on the appropriateness ofthe directors' use ofthe going concern basis ofaccounting and based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Fund's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to the related
disclosures in the financial statements oq if such disclosures are inadequate, to modifr our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors' report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Fund to cease to continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

a

-4-
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We communicate with the directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identiff
during our audit.

We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with the relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably
be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

ldfi4tr
Auditors

-5-
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SINCBPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUNI)

REPORT OF TIIE DIRECTORS

for the year ended 31 March 2019

It gives the Board pleasure to submit its report together with the financial statements for the year ended 3l March
2019.

State of the Fund's Affairs

The Fund has been able to execute its statutory mandate as stipulated in the Motor Vehicle Accidents Act of 1991,
as amended and has for the year ended 3 I March 2019 recorded a net deficit of E60 067 980 (201 8 net deficit:
E28 001 095) as a result of a significant increase in administration expenses, specifically salaries (there was a back-
pay from 2012 as a result of a salary review).

Financial Results

As at 3 I March 2019 the Fund's assets exceeded its liabilities by E490 016 927 (2018: E550 094 907).

Changes in claims processing

There has been a change in the Fund's approach to setting the Original Case Estimates. Since March 2017, all
OriginalCase Estimates of newly reported claims are set at the maximum limit if that particular claim type. This
has.resulted in a large negative Incurred But Not Enough Reported (IBNER) reserve of E39.5 million (20|S:E:4.3
million) in the current year, which is estimated to result in a projected release of case estimates in the iuture.

Going Concern

The going concern basis has been adopted in preparing the financial statements. The board of directors have made
an assessment of the financial condition of the Fund and have no reason to believe that the Fund will not be a going
concern in the foreseeable future based on strategic initiatives, implemented turnaround strategies and available cash
resources. These financial statements support the viability of the Fund.

The Fund recorded a deficit ofE60 067 980 (201E: 28 001 095) for the year ended 3 I March 2019. Atyear end, the
Fund'scurrentassetsexceededitscurrentliabilitiesbyEl2T44g616(2018: E188905 425),totalassltsexceeded
total liabilities by 8490 0t6927 (2018: E 550 084 907).

Events subsequent to year end

The directors are not aware of any events that have occurred subsequent to year end that could impact the amounts
presented in the financial statements, and:

(a) have been fully taken into account insofar as they have a bearing on the amounts attributable to assets and/or
liabilities at that date;

(b) 
1g1rt from changes in the ordinary course of business, have not made the present financial position substantially
different from that shown by the statement of financiar position;

(c) have not required adjustments to the fair value measurements and disclosures included in the financial
statements. pq&.
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VBHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

REPORT OF TTTB DIRECTORS

for the yeor ended 31 Morch 2019 (continued)

Board of directors

The following were board members up to 28 February 2019;

Mr Z lele
Mr A Dlamini
Mr F Mthethwa
Ms N Dlamini
Ms T Nkosi
Ms N Dludlu
Mr H Vilakati

Chairman

CEO - contract expired 3ll03l19

The followirtg were board members at the date of approval of these financial statements, who were
appointed on I March 2019:

Mr Z Gina
Mr S Nxumalo
Mr X Ngwenya
Ms N Dlamini
Ms T Nkosi
Ms N Dludlu
Mr B Zwane
Ms S Dlamini
Mr S Masuku

Chairman

CEO- appointed 0l l04l 19

Board secretary

-7 -
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Auditors

The auditors of the Fund are: KPMG chartered Accountants (Swaziland)

Business address postol address

SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUNI)

REPORT OF TTM DIRECTORS

for the year ended 3l March 2019 (continued)

Bankers

First National Bank Swaziland Limited
Nedbank (Swaziland) Limited
Standard Bank of Swaziland
Swazi land Building Society
Eswatini Development and Savings Bank

Business and postal address ofthe Fund

Business address

Sincephetelo MVA Office Park
Mbhilibhi Street
Mbabane
Eswatini

KPMG
Umkhiwa House
Lot 195 Kal Grant Street
Mbabane

Legal Advisors

Postal
Howe Masuku Nsibandze
P O Box 1298
Mbabane
Hl00
MbabaneW

Postal address

P O Box 4239
Mbabane
Hl00
Eswatini

POBox33l
Mbabane
Hl00

Physical
Lot 429
Corner Ben Dunn
Lomadvokokola Street

Queensgate, Mbabane

-8-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

REPORT OF TIIE DIRECTORS

for the year ended 3I March 2019 (continued)

Investment managers

Postal
African Alliance Eswatini Limited
P O Box 5727
Mbabane
Hl00

Stanlib Asset Management Limited
P O Box ,4.294

Swazi Plaza
Hl0l

Sanlam Investment Management
P O Box 8392
Mbabane
Hl00

Actuaries

Postal
Deloitte & Touche Actuarial &Insurance Solutions
Private Bag X6
Galllo Manor, 20152
Gauteng
South Africa

Physical
Nedbank Centre
2'd Floor
SwaziPlaza
Mbabane

South Wing Building
2nd Floor
Mbabane Office Park
Mbabane

New Mall Suite l0l
l't Floor
Dr Sishayi Road
Mbabane

Physical
Deloitte & Touche
Deloitte Place
The Woodland
Building 33, First Floor
20 Woodlands Drive
Woodmead, Gauteng

Wnk
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

REPORT OF ACTUARIES TO TIIE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF SINCEPIIETEITO MOTOR VIHICLE
ACCIDENTFTJND
for the year ended 3I March 2019

We hereby certify that:

we have undertaken an actuarial valuation of the outstanding claims provision of the Sincephetelo Motor
Vehicle Accident Fund as at 3l March 2019.

Statement of Assets, Liabilities and Excess Assets

a

Assets (net of non-technical liabilities)
Claims liabilities
Surplus

2019
E'000

786 649
(296 633\

490 016

2018
E'000

810 090
(260 006)

550 084

Published Reporting Valuation Methods and Assumptions
The discounted value of the outstanding claims liability is estimated to be 8296.6 million
(2018: E260.0 million). This figure includes an amount for the non-undertakings and undertakings liabilities,
gross large claims and their respective expected reinsurance recoveries as well as indirect claims handling
expenses.

The liability is calculated on an inflated and discounted basis, i.e. explicit allowance for future claims inflation
and anticipated investment returns was made.

The valuation results shown in this report were derived on a best estimate basis, and include no deliberate bias
for either over-estimation or under-estimation. However, the future experience of the Fund and hence the
valuation is subject to uncertainty. Deviation from the estimates are normal and to be expected and (given the
nature of schemes such as the Motor Vehicle Accidents Fund) are more likely to result in solvency
deteriorations than improvements.

The relatively small number of claims may cause a high level of volatility in the experience of the Fund. This
volatility in turn causes an increase in the uncertainty ofthe result.

This report is prepared in the context ofthe governing legislation as it stands as at the valuation date and as
such does not take into account any future legislative changes. A detailed report has been submitted to the
board ofdirectors.

-10-

o the valuation, on accepted actuarial principles, reveals the total outstanding claims amount, which allows
for outstanding reported as well as incurred but not reported claims.
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

STATEMENT OF COMPRETTENSIVE INCOME
for the year ended 31 March 2019

Note

Revenue
Net fuel levies

Net operating income

Other operating income

Net operating income before benefits and
claims expenses

Benefits and claims expenses

Net operating income after benefits and
claims expenses

Reinsurance proceeds

Operating and administrative expenses

Operating deficit

Investment income

Deficit for the year

(e3 66627e) (61 6s4 068)

33 s89 299 33 652 973

2019
E

I 13 846 368

20r8
E

106 372 959I

2

3

I t3 846 368

4 069 863

106 372 9s9

3 4',75155

tt7 916 231

(7s 94s 140)

109 848 r 14

(87 347'r72)

4t 991 091

I 536 266
(137 173 636)

25 500 342

(84 ls4 410)

4

6

(60 067 e80) (28 001 095)

Wuk
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SINCEPHETBLO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FTJND

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL FOSITION
qs ot 3l March 2019

Note

Assets
Non-current assets
Plant and equipment
Investment property
Financial assets

Non-current assets held for sale

7

8

9
t2

2019
E

253 828 03 I

48 099 943
288347 337

2018
E

2s9 497 836
5l 413 895

244 432 183
2 594 568

590 275 311 557 938 482

Current assets
Inventory
Fuel levy and other receivables
Financial assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Total assets

Equity
Reserves attributable to the fund
Accumulated surplus

Non-current liabilities
Outstanding c laims I iabi I ities
Undertaking liabilities

Current liabilities
Outstanding claims I iabilities
Undertaking liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions for employee benefits

l0
9
ll

982 363
t3 433 212
67 264 782

127 532265

r I 133 s67
tt4 418 465
131518 r21

209 212 622 257 0',10 153

799 487 933 8ls 008 635

490 016 927 550 084 907

l6
15

89 426 000
138 I 82 000

79 549 000
I 17 210 000

227 608 000 r96 759 000

t6
l5
l3
t4

4t 642 000
27 383 000
8952 115

3 885 89r

38 843 000
24 404 000
3 464 324
I 453 404

81 763 006 68 164 728

Total liabilities and equity

-12-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN RESERVES

for the year 3l March 2019

Year ended 31 March 2019

At the beginning of the year
Deficit for the year

At the end ofthe year

Year ended 3l March 2018

At the beginning of the year
Deficit for the year

At the end of the year

Accumulated
Surplus

E

550 084 907
(60 067 980)

490 016 927

578 086 002
(28 001 09s)

550 084 907

frik
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

STATEMENT OF CASH FITOWS

for the year ended 3l March 2019

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash utilised by operations
Investment income

Net cash inflows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

Acquisition of plant and equipment

Proceeds on sale ofassets
Net movement in investments

Net cash out/lows from investing activities

Net decrease in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning ofthe year

Cash and cash equivalents at the end ofthe year

(628s 8e2) ( 107 483 801)

Note

l8
6

7,8

2 300 036

2019

(31 2e8 263)
33 598299

201 8

E

(l 180 067)
33 652 973

E

32 472 906

(lo 039 348)

514 928
3 238 528

(27 733 796)
170 877

(79 920 882)

(3 e8s 8s6)

13l 518 121

(7s 010 89s)

206 s29 0t6

1l 127 532265 l3t 5l8 l2l

k?n(n
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
for the year ended 3 I March 2019

I GENERAL INFORMATION

The Fund was established by an Act of Parliament under the Motor Vehicle Accidents Act No.l3 of 1991, as
amended as an instrument by which the Government of Eswatini compensates road accidents victims who
suffered bodily injuries or loss of support following are death of breadwinners.

The Fund commenced operations under the fuel levy system on the l'tJanuary 1988.

1.1 FinancialStatements

The financial statements include the assets and liabilities of the Fund. The financial statements have been
authorised for issue by the board of directors 26 July 20 I 9.

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below.
These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements are prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) and in the manner required by the Motor Vehicle Accidents Act No. l3 of 1991, ui u*"nd"d. They
have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for financial assets and financial liabilities
which have been stated at fair value through profit or loss in thi statement of comprehensive income.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with IFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates' It also requires management to exercise its judgem"ri in the process of applying the Fund,i
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity,-o.1reas where
assumptions and estimates are significant to the financial statements have been disclosed in the financial
statements.

The accounting policies have been consistently applied to all years presented and all amounts are shown in
Emalangeni unless otherwise stated and forwarded to the nearest one Lilangeni.

The financial statements are presented in Emalangeni, rounded to the nearest one Lilangeni, the Fund,s
functional currency. k?nb

- 15 -
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

The Fund has initially adopted IFRS 9 and IFRS 15 from I April20l8. A number of new standards are also
effective from I April 2018 but they do not have a material effect on the Fund's financial statements.

The nature and effects ofthe key changes in the Fund's accounting policies resulting from the adoption of
IFRS 9 are summarised below:

Classitication oftinanciol assets and linancial lisbilities

IFRS 9 includes three principal classification categories for financial assets: measured at amortised cost,
FVOCI and FVTPL. The classification of financial assets under IFRS 9 is generally based on the business
model in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual cash flow characteristics. IFRS 9 eliminates
the previous IAS 39 categories of held-to-maturity investments, loans and receivables, and available for sale
financial assets.

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities.

The adoption ofIFRS t has not had a significant effect on the Fund's accounting policies related to financial
liabilities.

For an explanation ofhow the Fund classifies and measures financial assets and accounts for related galns
and losses under IFRS 9 see below. 

kf"lf
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

ClassiJication offinancial assets and Jinancial liahilities (continued)

The following table shows the original measurement category and carrying amount IAS 39 and the new
measurement category and carrying amount under IFRS 9 for each class of the Fund's financial assets and
financial liabilities as at I April20l8.

Kil,l,

Financial assets Original
classification under
IAS 39

New
classification
under IFRS
9

Original carrying
amount under IAS

39
E

New carrying
amount under

IFRS 9
E

Old Mutual
investments

FVTPL FVTPL l0 035 134 l0 035 t34

Stanlib investments FVTPL FVTPL s3 275 228 53 275 228

Sanlam investments FVTPL FVTPL 45 487 388 45 487 388

Government Bonds Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

126 220 753 126 220 753

Swaziland Building
Society-Permanent
shares

Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

9 413 680 9 413 680

African Alliance
Lilangeni Fund

Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

90 286 269 90 286269

Amandla Financial
Services

Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

13 472288 t3 472 288

FINCORP Bonds Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

l0 659 908 l0 659 908

Fuel levy and other
receivables

Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

tt 133 567 lr 133 s67

Cash and cash
valents

Loans and
receivables

Amortised
cost

13l 5r8 l2l 13l 518 l2l

Total Financial assets 501 502 336 501 502 336

-17-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

ClassiJicatio n of finoncial assets and Jinancial liabil ilies (co ntinued)

IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements in IAS 39 for the classification and measurement of financial
liabilities.

Impairment

IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with an 'expected credit loss' (ECL) model and results in
credit losses being recognised earlier than under IAS 39. The new impairment model applies to financial assets
measured at amortised cost (for example Debt instruments, trade and other receivables and cash and cash
equivalents), but not to investments in equity instruments. As a consequence of the new standard, the Fund has
revised its impairment methodology under IFRS 9 for each of these classes of assets. The Fund has determined
that the application of IFRS 9's impairment requirements at I April 2018 do not result in an additional
impairment allowance.

IFRS I5

IFRS l5 establishes a comprehensive framework for determining whether, how much and when revenue is
recognised. It replaced IAS l8 'Revenue' and related interpretations.

The Fund has adopted IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' from I April 2018 which has not
resulted in changes to accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognised in the financial
.ru,"*,ents. 

fifmlf
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.2 New standards issued but not yet effective

At the date of authorisation of the financial statements of Fund for the year ended 31 March 2019 the following
standards and interpretations were in issue but not yet effected.

Effective for the financial year commencing I April20l9

. IFRS 16 Leases
o IFRIC 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments
o Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures (Amendment to IAS 28)
o Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement (Amendment to ISA l9)
o Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 201512017 Cycle various standards

Effective for the linancial year commencing I April2020

o Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards
. Definition of a Business (Amendments to IFRS 3)
o Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS I and IAS 8)

Effective for the financial year commencing I April 2021

IFRS l7 Insurance Contracts

All Standards and Interpretations will be adopted at their effective date (except for those Standards and
Interpretations that are not applicable to the Fund).
IFRS i, IFRIC 23, US 19, IFRS 17 and US 28 are not applicable to the business of the Fund and will therefore
have no impact on future financial statements. The directors are ofthe opinion that the impact of the application
of the remaining Standards and Interpretations will be as follows: pr;_

-19-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.2 New standards issued but not yet effective

Deftnition of Material (Amendments to IAS I and IAS 8)

The changes in Definition of Material (Amendments to IAS I and IAS 8) all relate to a revised definition of
'material'which is quoted below from the final amendments "Information is material if omitting, misstating or
obscuring it could reasonably be expected to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements, which provide financial information about
a specific reporting entity."

The Board has also removed the definition of material omissions or misstatements from IAS 8 Accounting
Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors.

The amendments are effective from I January 2020 b:ut may be applied earlier. However, the Board does not
expect significant change - the refinements are not intended to alter the concept of materiality.

Amendments to References to Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards

The IASB decided to revise the Conceptual Framework because certain important issues were not covered and
certain guidance was unclear or out of date. The revised Conceptual Framework, issued by the IASB in March
201 8, includes:

o a new chapter on measurement;
o guidance on reporting financial performance;
o improved definitions of an asset and a liability, and guidance supporting these definitions; and
o clarifications in important areas, such as the roles of stewardship, prudence and measurement uncertainty in

financial reporting.

The IASB also updated references to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards by issuing Amendments to
References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards. This was done to support transition to the revised
Conceptual Framework for companies that develop accounting policies using the Conceptual Framework when
no IFRS Standard applies to a particular transaction.

The amendments are not expected to have an impact on the Fund. 
klnl,
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 20 19

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.2 New standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS 16 Leases

The Fund is required to adopt IFRS 16 from I April 2019. The Fund has assessed the estimated impact that the
initial application of IFRS 16 will have on its financial statements as described below. The actual impacts of
adopting the standard on I April 2019 may change because:

The new accounting policies are subject to change until the Fund presents its first financial statements
that include the date of initial application.

a

IFRS l6 introduces a single, on-balance sheet lease accounting model for lessees. A lessee recognises a right -
of-use asset representing its right to use the underlying asset and a lease liability representing its obligation to
make lease payments. There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of low-value items.
Lessor accounting remains similar to the current standard i.e. lessors continue to classifo leases as finance or
operating leases.

Leases in which the Fund is a lessee

The Fund will recognise new assets and liabilities for its operating leases. The nature of expenses related to those
leases will now change because the Fund will recognise a depreciation charge for right-of-use assets and interest
expense on lease liabilities.

Previously, the Fund recognised operating lease expense on a straight -line basis over the term ofthe lease, and
recognised assets and liabilities only to the extent that there was a timing diflerence between actual lease
payments and the expense recognised.

Based on the information currently available, the Fund estimates that it will recognise additional lease liabilities
of 8554 380 as at I April 2019.

Leases in which the Fund is a lessor

No significant impact is expected for other leases in which the Fund is a lessor. pprft
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2019

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION (continued)

2.2 New standards issued but not yet effective (continued)

IFRS f6 Leases (continued)

Transition

The Fund plans to apply IFRS 16 initially on I April 2019, using the modified retrospective approach. Therefore,
the cumulative effect of adopting IFRS l6 will be recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained
eamings at I April 2019, with no restatement of comparative information.

The Fund plans to apply the practical expedient to grandfather the definition of a lease on transition. This means
that it will apply IFRS l6 to all contracts entered into before I April20l9 and identified as leases in accordance
with IAS 17 and IFRIC 4.

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle

The IASB has issued various amendments and clarifications to existing IFRS, none of which is expected to have
a significant impact on the group's annual financial statements.

Effective date: I April 2019 with earlier application nermitted [1[r,f,
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES3.

3.1

3.1.1

INSURANCE CONTRACTS

Claims incurred

Claims incurred comprise claims and related expenses incurred during the year and changes in the
provisions for outstanding claims, including provisions for claims incurred but not reported and related
external and internal expenses, together with any other adjustments to claims from previous years.

3.1.2 Outstanding claims provision

Provision is made at the year-end for the estimated cost of claims incurred but not settled at the
reporting date, including the cost of claims incurred but not yet reported (commonly referred to as

Claims IBNR) to the Fund and the cost of claims reported but not yet settled as at the reporting date.
Claims outstanding are determined as accurately as possible on the basis of a number of factors, which
include previous experience in claims patterns, claims settlement patterns and trends in claims
frequency.

Further, the outstanding claims provision is calculated taking the following elements into account:
. Estimates of additional claims payments that may be required on claims that have already been

reported to the Fund and are still open;
. Estimates of additional claims payments that may be required on claims that have already been

reported to the Fund and are closed, but could be reopened in the future; and;
. Estimates of external claims handling expenses, i.e. legal and medical experts, assessors and

other experts - excluding the Fund's overhead administrative costs.
. Indirect claim handling expenses.

The estimates of the outstanding claims provision were produced on a "going concern" basis, and the
outstanding claims estimate is reflected in the financial statements at a discounted value, based on
expected monetary values at the expected time of payment of those claims. Reserves for internal or
indirect claim handling expenses (e.g. administration costs) are specifically included in the estimates.
The outstanding claims provision is calculated gross of any reinsurance recoveries. A separate estimate
is made of the amounts that will be recoverable from reinsurers based upon the gross provisions and
having due regard to collectability.WM[^
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

INSURANCE CONTRACTS (continued)
Outstanding claims provision (continued)

Incurred but not reported claims

Provision is made in the claim's liabilities under insurance contracts for the estimated cost at the end
of the year of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at that date. The liability is calculated using the
four methods; Basic Chain Ladder (BCL), Initial Estimated Loss (lEL) method, Bornhuetter-Ferguson
(BHF) and Payments Per Claim Incurred (PPCD method. Thereafter the most appropriate method is
selected given the observed claims development. A stochastic claims reserving technique
(bootstrapping) is then used to determine a range of likely outcomes for the outstanding claims
liability. These liabilities are then discounted to allow for the time value of money. Outstanding claims
and benefit payments are stated gross ofreinsurance.

3.2

3.2.1

REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD

Reinsurance premiums
The Fund procured reinsurance cover for the purposes of limiting its net loss potential in previous
years priorto the implementation of the Motor Vehicle Accidents (amendment) Act of 2011. The
reinsurance policies do not release the Fund from its direct obligations to its claimants, as the duty to
compensate the claimants remains with the Fund in spite of the fact that the reinsurance cover has been
procured.

The Fund did not renew its cover, hence there are no reinsurance premiums payable in the current
year.

The Fund does not recognise reinsurance assets except for claims which have already been lodged
with reinsurers, due to uncertainty regarding the successful realisation of the claims. All claims that
were incurred while the Fund was covered have been recognised in the Fund's liabilities as a recovery
from the re-insurer.

3.2.2 Reinsuranceclaims

The expected benefits to which the Fund is entitled under its reinsurance contracts held are
recognised as reinsurance assets. These assets consist of balances due from reinsurers (classified
within loans and receivables) that are dependent on the present value of expected claims and benefits
arising net of expected premiums payable under the related reinsurance contracts. Amounts
recoverable from or due to reinsurers are measured consistently with the amounts associated with the
reinsured contracts and in accordance with the terms of each reinsurarrce contract. krh|
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3 I March 201 9

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.2 REINSURANCE CONTRACTS HELD (continued)

3.2.2 Reinsurance claims (continued)

Reinsurance assets include balances due from reinsurance companies for ceded insurance liabilities.
Amounts recoverable from reinsurers' are estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding claims
provision or settled claims associated with the reinsured policy. The cost of reinsurance related to long
term contracts is accounted for over the life of the underlying insurance policies using assumptions
consistent with those used to account for the underlying policies. Premiums ceded and benefits
reimbursed are presented in the statement of comprehensive income and statement of financial position
on a gross basis.

Reinsurance assets are assessed for impairment at each reporting date. If there is reliable objective
evidence, as a result of an event that occurred after its initial recognition, that arnounts due may not be
recoverable, the Fund reduces the carrying amount of the reinsurance asset to its recoverable amount
and recognises that impairment loss in the statement of comprehensive income.

3.3 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

All plant and equipment are stated at historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost may also include transfers
from equity ofany gains/losses on qualiffing cash flow hedges offoreign currency purchases ofplant
and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset's carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the income statement during the financial
period in which they are incurred.

Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to
allocate their cost or revalued amounts to their residual values over their estimated useful lives, as
follows:

Buildings
Office fumiture and equipment
Motor vehicle
Computer equipment and software
Medical equipment

4%
20%
20%

33.3%
t5%

Wvtl-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUI\{MARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.3 PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (continued)

The assets' residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted ifappropriate, at the end ofeach
reporting period.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable amount ifthe asset's carrying
amount is greater than its estimated recoverable amount.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount and

are recognised within 'Other (losses)/gains - net' in the income statement. When revalued assets are

sold, the amounts included in other reserves are transferred to retained earnings.

3.4 INVESTMENTPROPERTY

Investment property, principally comprising freehold and leasehold land and buildings, is held for long-
term rental yields with third parties.

Investment property is measured initially at its cost, including related transaction costs and where
applicable borrowing costs.

After initial recognition Investment property is carried at fair value, representing open market value
determined by external valuers. Fair value is based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary, for
any difference in the nature, location or condition ofthe specific asset.

If the information is not available, the Fund uses altemative valuation methods such as recent prices on
less active markets or discounted cash flow projections. These valuations are done by independent
valuers every three years and reviewed annually by the directors. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the statement of comprehensive income as part of other income. Investment properties are derecognised
when they have been disposed.

If an investment property becomes owner-occupied, it is reclassified as property, plant and equipment and
its fair value at the date of reclassification becomes its cost for accounting purposes of subsequent
recording. Property that is being constructed or developed for future use as investment property is
classified as property, plant and equipment and stated at cost until construction or development is complete,
at which time it is reclassified and subsequently accounted for as investment property.

If an item of property, plant and equipment becomes an investment properly because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of property, plant and equipment under IAS 16. However, if a fair
value gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is recognised in the statement of comprehensive
income. Upon the disposal of such investment property, any surplus previously recorded in equity is
transferred to retained earnings; the transfer is not made through the statement of comprehensive income.

-26 -
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 20 19

3.

3.5

3.5.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial Assets-policy applicable after I April 2018

Recognition and initial measurement

Trade receivables are initially recognised when they are originated. All other financial assets and financial

liabilities are initially recognised when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the

instrument.

A financial asset (unless it is a trade receivable without a significant financing component or financial liability

is initially measured at fair value plus, for an item not at FVTPL, transaction costs that are directly attributable

to its acquisition or issue. A trade receivable without a significant financing component is initially measured

at the transaction price.

Chssitication and subsequent measurement

Financial assets

On initial recognition, a financial asset is classified as measured at amortisation cost or FVTPL.

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition unless the Fund changes its business

model for managing financial assets, in which case all affected financial assets are reclassified on the first day

of the reporting period following the change in the business model.

A financial asset is measured at amortised cost if it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated

as at FVTPL.

it is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets to collect contractual cash

flows and
its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal

and interest on the principal amount outstanding

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost as described above are measured at FVTPL.
On initial recognition the Fund may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the

requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FVOCI as at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly
reduces an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise. 

;,nn6
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3I March 2019

3.

3.5

3.5.1

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

TINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Finacial assets-policy applicable after I April20l8 (continued)

Business model ass essment

The Fund makes an assessment of the objective of the business model in which a financial asset is held at
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and information is provided to
management. The information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfolio and operation ofthose policies in practice. These
include whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a
particular interest rate profile, matching the duration ofthe financial assets to the duration of any related
liabilities or expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;
how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Fund's management;
the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and how those risks are managed;
how managers of the business are compensated-e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of
the assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and
the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales
and expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third parties in transactions that do not qualiff for derecognition are not
considered sales for this purpose, consistent with the Fund's continuing recognition ofthe assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on fair value
basis are measured at FVTPL.

Assessment whether contractual cashflows are solely payments of principal and interest

Forthe purposes of this assessment,'principal' is defined as the fair value of the financial asset on initial
recognition. 'Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk
associated with the principal amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic
lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and administrative costs), as well as profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are SPPI, the Fund considers the contractual terms of the
instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual term that could change
the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In making the
assessment, the Fund considers:
- contingent events that would change the amount and timing of cash flows;- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features; and- terms that limit the Fund's claim to cash flows from specified assets (e.g. non-recourse features).

ktnl,"
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.5 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

3.5.1 Financial assets-policy applicable after 1 April20l8 (continued)

Subsequent measurement

Financial assets at These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses,
FVTPL including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets at
amortised cost

These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. The amortised cost is reduced by impairment loses. Interest
income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in
profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in profit and loss.

3.5.2 Financial assets-policy applicable before 1 April 2018

The Fund classifies its financial assets in the following categories: at fair value through profit or loss,
loans and receivables, and available for sale. The classification depends on the purpose for which the
financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its financial assets at
initial recognition.

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading. A financial
asset is classified in this category if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term.
Derivatives are also categorised as held for trading unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if expected to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, they are
classifi ed as non-current.

(b) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included in current assets, except for maturities greater than
12 months after the end ofthe reporting period. These are classified as non-current assets. The Fund's
loans and receivables comprise 'Fuel levy and other receivables' and 'cash and cash equivalents, in
the statement of financial position (notes 9 and l0). kfr6
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3I March 2019

3.5 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

3.5.2 Financial assets-policy applicable before I April20l8 (continued)

Rec o gniti on ond m e as ur em ent

Regular purchases and sales offinancial assets are recognised on the trade-date - the date on which the Fund
commits to purchase or sell the asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs

for all financial assets not carried at fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and transaction costs are expensed in the income
statement. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have
expired or have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards ofownership.
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are subsequently carried at fair value. Loans and receivables
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value ofthe 'financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss category are presented in the income statement within 'other (losses)/gains - net' in the period in which
they arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair value through profit or loss is recognised in the
income statement as part of other income when the Fund's right to receive payments is established.

3.5.3 Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL. A financial liability is classified
as FVTPL if it is classified as held for trading or it is designated as such on initial recognition. Financial
liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expenses, are
recognised in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method. Interest expense is recognised in profit or loss. Any gain on derecognition is
also recognised in profit or loss.

3.5.4 Derecognition

Financial assets

The Fund derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transition in which substantially all
of the risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or in which the Fund neither
transfers nor retains substantially all ofthe risks and rewards ofownership and it does not retain control ofthe
financial asset.

The Fund enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position,
but retains e ither all of substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the
transferred assets are not derecognised. 

9716
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCTDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.5 FINANCIALINSTRUMENTS

3.5.4 Derecognition (continued)

Financial liabilities

The Fund derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled or

expire. The Fund also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the

modified liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified
terms is recognised at fair value.

On derecognition of a financial liability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in profit or
loss.

3.5.5 Offsetting

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Fund currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and it intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

3.6 IMPAIRMENT

3.6.1 Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicablefrom I April2018

The Fund recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:

- Financial assets measured at amortised cost.

The Fund measiures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs, except for the following which are
measured at 12 month ECLs.

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date and
other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk (i.e. the risk ofdefault occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial recognition

Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
kfrill-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.6 IMPAIRMENT

3.6.1 Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicablefrom I April20l8

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial
recognition and when estimating ECLs, the Fund considers reasonable and supportable information that is

relevant and available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative

information and analysis, based on the Fund historical experience and informed credit assessment and

including forward looking information.

The Fund assumes that the credit risk on financial asset has increased significantly it is more than 30 days

past due.

The Fund considers a financial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Fund in full, without recourse by the

Fund to actions such as realising security (ifany is held, or
the financial asset is more than 90 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument.

12 - month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12

months after the reporting dated for a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than l2
months).

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which
the Fund is exposed to credit risk.

Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present
value of all cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the Fund in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Fund expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial 
^r"t. f,rf /f
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.6 IMPAIRMENT

3.6.1 Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicablefrom I April20l8

Credit impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Fund assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost. A financial asset is

"credit-impaired" when one or more events that have detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

significant financial difficulty of the bonower or issuer;

a breach ofcontract such as a default or being more than 90 days past due;
the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Fund on terms that the Fund would not consider
otherwise;
it is probable that the borrower will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation, or
the disappearance ofan active market for a security because offinancial difficulties

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement offinancial position

Loss allowances for financial urssets measured at amortised cost are deducted from gross carrying amount
ofthe assets.

l4trite-off

The Fund writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery eg when the counterparty has been placed under
liquidation or has entered into bankruptcy proceeding. However, financial assets that are written off could
still be subject to enforcement activities in order to comply with the Fund's procedures for recovery of
amounts due. 
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 IMPAIRMENT

3.6.1 Non-derivative financial assets

Policy applicable before I April 2018

Financial assets not classified as at FVTPL were assessed at each reporting date to determine whether there

was objective evidence of impairment.

Objectives evidence that financial assets were impaired included:

- default or delinquency by a debtor
- restructuring of an amount due to the Fund on terms that the Fund would not consider otherwise.

- indications that a debtor or issuer would enter bankruptcy
- adverse charges in the payment status of borrowers or issuers.

- the disappearance of an active market for security because of financial difficulties, or
- observable data indicating that there was a measureable decrease in the expected cash flows from a

Fund of financial assets.

The Fund considered evidence of impairment to these assets at both an individual asset and a collective level.

All individually significant assets were individually assessed for impairment. Those found not to be impaired
were then collectively assessed for any impairment that has been incurred but not yet individually identified.
Assets that were not individually significant were collectively assessed to impairment. Collective assessment

was carried out by grouping together assets with similar risk characteristics.

An impairment loss was calculated as the difference between an assets carrying amount and the present value
of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate. Losses were
recognised in profit or loss and reflected in an allowance account. When the Fund considered that there were
no realistic prospects of recovery of the asset, the relevant amounts were written off. If the amount of
impairment loss subsequently decreased and the decrease was related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, then the previously recognised impairment loss was reversed through profit
or loss. 
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.6 IMPAIRMENT

3.6.2 Non-financialassets

At reporting date, the Fund reviews the carrying amounts of its non-financial assets (other than

investment property) to determine whether there is any indication of impairment. If any such

indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount estimated.

For impairment testing, assets are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates

cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or

CGUs.

The recoverable amount of an asset or CGU is the greater of its value in use and its fair value less costs

to sell. Value in use is based on the estimated future cash flows, discounted to their present value

using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and

the risks specific to the asset or CGU.

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or CGU exceeds its recoverable

amount.

Impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that the asset's carrying amount does not exceed the

carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortisation, if no

impairment loss had been recognised.

3,7 PROVISIONS

Provisions are recognised when the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of
past events, it is probable that an outflow ofresources will be required to settle the obligation, and a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made. Where the Fund expects a provision to be reimbursed,
for example under an insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain.

The Fund recognises a provision for onerous contracts when the expected benefits to be derived from
a contract are less than the unavoidable costs ofmeeting the obligations under the contract.

Restructuring provisions comprise lease termination penalties and employee termination payments,
and are recognised in the period in which the Fund becomes legally or constructively committed to
payment. Costs related to the ongoing activities of the Fund are not provided in advance.

Provisions are discounted using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments ofthe
time value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific to the liability
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.8 REVENUE RECOGNITION

Revenue comprises mainly fuel levies, investment income and reinsurance income.

3.8.1 Fuel levies

The main income received by the Fund is a levy that is based on fuel sales known as the Motor Vehicle
Accident Fund Levy. The Levy income is a charge levied on fuel throughout the country and the rate

of the Levy per litre is determined by the Ministry of Finance in consultation with the Minister of
Natural Resources and Energy.

The Fund recognises reyenue from fuel levies when the amount of revenue can be reliably measured

and it is probable that future economic benefits will flow to the Fund.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable.

3.8.2 Investmentincome

Investment income comprises interest income on funds invested.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis using the effective interest rate method. When
a receivable is impaired, the Fund reduces the carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the
estimated future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the instrument, and
continues unwinding the discount as interest income.

3.8.3 Rental income

Rental income from investment property are recognised in the statement of income on a straight line
basis over the term ofeach lease.

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable 
kf"t,
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 20 19

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.9 LEASES

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor

are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of any incentives

received from the lessor) aie charged to the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis

over the period ofthe lease.

3.9.1 The Fund as lessor

Receipts of operating leases from properties held as investment property are accounted for as income

on thi straightJine basis over the period of the lease. When an operating lease is terminated, any

payment required by the lessee by way of penalty is recognised as income in the period in which

termination takes place.

3.9.2 The Fund as lessee

Lease payments arising from operating leases are recognised in the statement of comprehensive

income on a straightJine basis over the lease term. Prfnt
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

3.r0 CASH AND CASH EQUMLENTS

Cash and cash equivalents are carried in the statement offinancial position at cost. For purposes ofthe
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, deposits held at call with
Funds, other short-term highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and

Fund overdrafts. Fund overdrafts are included within borrowings in current liabilities on the statement

of financial position.

3.II EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

(a) Pension obligations

The Fund has a pension scheme in accordance with the local conditions and practices. The scheme is

a defined contribution plan.

The Fund pays contributions to publicly or privately administered pension insurance plans on a
mandatory, contractual or voluntary basis. The Fund has no further payment obligations once the

contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as employee benefit expenses when
they are due. Prepaid contributions are recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a
reduction in the future payments is available.

(b) Terminotion beneJits

Termination benefits are payable when employment is terminated by the Fund before the normal
retirement date, or whenever an employee accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for these

benefits. The Fund recognises termination benefits when it is demonstrably committed to a termination
when there is a detailed formal plan to terminate the employment of current employees without
possibility of withdrawal. In the case of an offer made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on the number of employees expected to accept the offer.

(c) Stotulory obligations

Provision is not made for statutory termination obligations in terms of the Employment Act, 1980. It
is considered that the Fund's contributions to the pension fund exceed the contributions required by
the employment act which can be recovered against such statutory obligations, at present. pfuf,
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year encled 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUI\TINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.12 TAXATION

The Fund is exempt from taxation in terms of the provision of section 5 (2) of the Motor Vehicle
Accidents Act No.13 of 1991 as amended.

3.T3 UNDERTAKINGS LIABILITY

The liability of undertakings is in respect of future medical costs, future loss of earnings and loss of
support claims, where future medical, future loss of earnings and loss of support expenses are
anticipated. The Fund has undertaken to meet these expenses in the future as and when they are
incurred. The Fund estimates the present value of future costs and the necessary funds are deposited
into separate interest bearing accounts from which payments are made.

The amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's carrying amount and the
present value ofestimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred)
discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. (ldA
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.I4 KEY ASSUMPTIONS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Key assumptions derive estimates which require management's most complex or subjective judgements.

Thi Fund's management decide on assumptions that can materially affect the reported amounts of assets

and liabilities within the next financial year. These estimates and judgements are continually evaluated

and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations offuture events that are

believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The most significant assets and liabilities which

typically require such assumptions are fair value of investments and the outstanding claims provision'

a) Outstanding claims provision and undertaking liabililies

The estimation of the ultimate liability arising from claims incurred but not settled at the reporting date

is the Fund's most critical accounting estimate. There are several sources of uncertainty that need to be

considered in the estimate of the liability that the Fund will ultimately pay for such claims. The provision

for outstanding claims is actuarially determined on an annual basis. The measurement of the obligations

in respect of this liability requires actuarial estimates and valuations. An actuary is engaged to perform

these calculations.

The Fund establishes a claim liability account, which is estimates of future payments for reported

(known) claims and unreported claims (Incurred But Not Reported, 'IBNR') with respect to events

which could result in an expense to the Fund. Provisioning is a complex process dealing with uncertainty

requiring the use of informed estimates and judgements. Any changes in the estimates are reflected in

the income statement in the period in which estimates are changed.

Delays occur in notification of claims and a substantial measure of experience and judgment is involved
in assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty as of the

statement of financial position date.

The liability for claims is determined on the basis of information currently available; however it is
inherent in the nature of the business that the ultimate liability may vary as a result of subsequent

developments.

In the current year the Fund has assumed an annual inflation of approximately 7%o per annum. The IBNR
calculation was discounted using a real discount rate of 2Yo per annum.

Each year at 3l March, the Fund performs an actuarial valuation of the outstanding claims liability.

Outstanding claims provision is made in the claim's liabilities under insurance contracts for the
estimated cost at the end of the year of claims incurred but not reported (IBNR) at that date. The liability
is calculated using the four methods; Basic Chain Ladder (BCL), Initial Estimated Loss (IEL) Method,
Bornhuetter-Ferguson (BHF) and Payments Per Claim Incurred (PPCI) method. Thereafter the most
appropriate method is selected given the observed claims development. A stochastic claims reserving
technique (bootstrapping) is then used to determine a range of likely outcomes for the outstanding claims
liability. These liabilities are not discounted due to the short-term nature of outstanding claims.
Outstanding claims and benefit payments are stated gross of reinsurance. 146fi

40-



ffiTE

SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.14 KEY ASSUMPTIONS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Finance income comprises interest receivable on loans, advances, trade receivables and income from

financial investments. Interest is only recognised where it is probable that the economic benefits

associated with the transaction will flow to the Board. Finance income is recognised on a time-
proportionate basis that takes into account the effective yield on assets.

Summary of economic assumptions

(i) Inflation
Historical inflation (CPI index) figures supplied by the Fund to inflate past claims to present day values

were used. The inflation rate over the inter-valuation period wu 6%o year-on-year for end of March 2019.

Future inflation was allowed for at a rate of lYo p.a. In the previous valuation, 7%owas also used. The real

discount rate (i.e. excess of the discount rate over inflation) is approximately 2Yo p.a. and is the same in
the previous valuation.

(i) Discount rate
The discount rate was set at9%o p.a. and the real discount rate has been set at a rate of 2o/o p.a. This is the

same as the previous valuation

Sensitivity analysis - non undertakings outstanding claims

In this section we illustrate the sensitivity ofthe valuation result to isolated changes in the valuation basis.

The sensitivities shown below were performed on the non-undertakings outstanding claims.

Test E000's 7o Change

I
2

Discounted outstanding claims liability as at 3l
March 2019
Decrease in discounted rates by l%
Reduced indirect claims handling expense ratio by
sYo

l3l 068
133 888
126 723

2.2%
(33%)

From the table above it can be seen that the valuation results are not materially affected by the changes in the
discount rate and indirect claims handling expenses as defined by the different sensitivity tests.

The results may be summarised as follows:

(Test l) Decrease discount rates by l%

a (Test 2) Reduce indirect claims handling expense ratio by 5%.

-41-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 2019

3.

3.14

Discounted outstanding claims liability as at 3l
March 2019
Increase take - up rates by l%
Increase real discounted rates by l% (decrease

inflation by l%)
Increase average IBNR claim amount by 5%

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

KEY ASSUMPTIONS IN APPLYING ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Sensitivity anolysis - undertakings outstanding claims

In this section we illustrate the sensitivity of the valuation result to isolated changes in the valuation

basis. The sensitivities shown below were performed on the undertakings outstanding claims liability:

Test E000's V" Change

I
)

3

165 565
168 352

160 982
168 909

1.7%

(2.8%)
2.0%

Inflating cash flows at a lower inflation rate reduces the present value of liability. The important

assumption in the escalation and discounting process is the real discount rate. The real discount rate used

for the current valuation is 270. Increasing the real discount rate to 3% reduces the liability by 1.8%. We

conclude that the valuation results are not materially affected by the changes in the key assumptions as

defined in the sensitivity tests.

The results may be summarised as follows:

I (Test l) Increase take up rates by l%

(Test 2) Increase real discount rates by l% (decrease inflation by l%)

(Test 3) Increase average IBNR claim amount by 5%.

b) Basis for determining foir values of investmenls

The fair values of quoted investments in active markets are based on current bid prices. If the market
for a financial asset is not active, the Fund establishes fair value by using valuation techniques. These
include the use of recent arm's length transactions or other valuation techniques commonly used by
market participants. 

kflM6
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3. SIGNIFICANTACCOUNTINGPOLICIES(continued)

3.I5 NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as assets held for sale when their carrying amount

is to be recovered principally through a sale transaction and a sale is considered highly probable.

Such assets are generally measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs to sell.

Any impairment loss in a disposal group is allocated to the assets and liabilities on a pro rata basis, except

that no loss is allocated to financial assets and investment property which continue to be measured in

accordance with the Fund's other accounting policies. Impairment losses on initial classification as held

for sale and subsequent gains and losses on re-measurement are recognised in profit or loss.

Once classified as held for sale, property and equipment is no longer depreciated.

4 RISK MANAGEMENT FRAMEWORK AND OBJECTIVES

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for establishing and comrnunicating appropriate risk and

control policies and ensuring that adequate risk management processes are in place. The Fund has a board

of directors which deals with the various aspects on policies for accepting risks, including selection and

approval of risks to be insured, use of limits and avoiding undue concentrations of risk to ensure the

appropri ate ri sk classifi cation.

Responsibility for the board of directors

The Fund's board of directors is appointed by the Minister of Finance and is in place to assist the

management in discharging its risk management obligations. The principal objectives of the Fund's board

of directors in terms of risk management are to:

. Review the Fund's risk philosophy, strategy, policies and processes recommended by executive
managemenu

. Review compliance with risk policies and with the overall risk profile of the Fund;

. Revielv and assess the integrity ofthe process and procedures for identifying, assessing, recording and

monitoring of risk;
. Review the adequacy arrd effectiveness of the Fund's risk management function and its

implernentation by management;
. Ensure that material corporate risks have been identified, assessed and receive attention; and

A significant part of Fund's business involves the acceptance and management of risk. Primary
responsibility for risk management at an operational level rests with the executive management. The
Fund's risk maragenlent processes, of which the systems of internal, financial and operating controls are

an integral part, are designed to control and monitor risk throughout the Fund. For effectiveness, these
processes rely on regular communication, sound judgement and a thorough knowledge of the products
and markets by the people closest to them. Management is tasked with integrating the management of risk
into the day-to-day activities of the Fund. 

i*Arr,
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 20I 9

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
5.1 Financial risk factors

The Fund's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including cash flow interest rate

risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The organization's overall risk management programme

focuses on the unpredictability of consumer and financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse

effects on the Fund's financial performance.

Risk management is carried out by management under policies approved by the board of directors.

Management identifies, and evaluates risks in close co-operation with the Fund's board of directors. The

board provides written principles for overall risk management, as well as written policies covering

specific areas, such as interest rate risk, credit risk, use non-derivative financial inskuments, and

investment of excess liquidity.

a) Market risk

Market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and equity price risk. From time to time financial
instruments are entered into to reduce this exposure to market risk

(r) Cunencv risk

Currency risk is the risk that the financial instruments that are denominated in foreign currency will
fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates.

The Fund is not exposed to currency risk at the reporting date as there were no financial instruments that
are denominated in foreign currency. The Fund also operates in Eswatini only.

(ii) Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument or an

insurance contract will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates.

The Fund continuously assesses the market expectations within South Africa and Eswatini interest rate
environments.

The Fund's exposure to market risk for changes in interest rates relates primarily to the Fund's
investments. As part of the process of managing the Fund's interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics
of new investments are positioned according to expected movements in interest rates.

The following financial instruments will be directly impacted by changes in market interest rates
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, cash and cash equivalents, and undertaking liabilities

A change of50 basis points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased (decreased) profit
or loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes that all other variables remain constant.

W
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

The monetary sensitivity analysis to changes in interest rates on assets is performed on the same basis

as for 20 1 8:

Profit or loss and/or equity

2019

355 6t2 ttg

127 532265

2018
E

358 850 648

131 518 l2t

E

Financial assets (note 9)

Cash and cash equivalent (note I 1)

Base assets

Increase of50 basis points
Decrease of 50 basis points

483 r44 384 490 368 769

2 4ts 722
(2 4rs 722)

2 451 844
(2 4st 844)

(iii) Price risk

Equity price risk
The Fund is currently exposed to equity price risk because at the statement of financial position date
there were investments held by the Fund that were classified either as available for sale or at fair value
through profit and loss.

Commodity Price risk
The Fund is not exposed to commodity price risk.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterpqrty to a /inancial instrument v;ill .fail to discharge an obligation and
cause the Fund to incur afinancial loss

Credit risk is managed on a Fund basis. Credit risk arises from cash and cash equivalents and deposits
with Funds and financial institutions, as well as credit exposures to oil companies for fuel levy
receivables, including outstanding receivables and committed transactions.

For banks and financial institutions, deposits are only placed with high credit quality financial
institutions. As there is no independent rating, risk control to assess the credit quality of its clients, taking
into account its financial position, past experience and other factors, the Fund only deal with reputable
and international oil companies. ffuk
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

5 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors
The banks and financial institutions on which deposits are placed by the Fund are:

. First National Bank Swaziland Limited

. Nedbank (Swaziland) Limited

' Standard Bank of Swaziland
. Swaziland Building Society
. Eswatini Development and Savings Bank

' African Alliance Swaziland Limited (Investment Managers)
. Stanlib Asset Management Limited (Investment Managers)
. Sanlam Investment Management (Investment Managers).

(b) Credit risk (continued)

Credit risk is the risk that coulterparty to a financial instrument will foil to discharge an obligation and
cause the Fund to incur a.financial loss (continued)

The oil companies from which the Fund's fuel levy receivables are collectable are:-
. Galp Energia Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
. Engen Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
. Total Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
. Puma Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
. Swaziland Petroleum

' Swazi Oils
. Gas and Oil Industries

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk thqt the Fund will encounter dfficulty in raising funds to meet commitments
associated with financial instruments and reinsurance contracts.

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the
availability of funding through an adequate amount of committed credit facilities and the ability to close

out market positions. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, the Fund maintains
flexibility in funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines.

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk management rests with the board of directors, which has built an
appropriate liquidity risk management framework for the management of the Fund's short, medium and
long-term funding and liquidity management requirements.

The Fund manages liquidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash reserves and by matching financial assets
and liabilities as far as is practical. The Fund remains confident that the available cash resources and short-
term investments will be sufficient to meet its funding requirements WAL
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
for the year ended 3l March 2019

5 FINANCIALRISKMANAGEMENT(continued)

5.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk (continued)

Reinsurance is also used to manage liquidity risk.

Note 16(b) analyses the Fund's financial liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on the
remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within l2 months equal
their carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant.

The Fund's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Fund's ability to continue as a going
concern in order to provide compensation in terms of the Motor Vehicle Accidents Fund ActNo. l3 of
l99l , as amended.

Due to the nature of its operations, the Fund does not have to maintain or adjust the capital structure, as it
is a Fund established by the Act of Parliament under the Motor Vehicle Accidents Fund Act No. 13 of
1991 as the instrument by which the Government of Eswatini compensates to road accident victims who
have suffered bodily injuries or loss of support following the death of breadwinners.

Consistent with other Funds, the Fund does not monitor capital on the basis of the gearing ratio

5.2 Fair value estimation

The Fund does not have financial instruments traded in active markets (such as trading and available-for-
sale securities) which are fair valued based on quoted market prices at the statement of financial position
date.

Furthermore, the Fund does not have financial instruments that are traded in an active market which their
fair values are determined by using valuation techniques.

The carrying value less impairment provision of fuel levy receivables and payables are assumed to
approximate their fair values. The fair value of financial liabilities for disclosure purposes is estimated by
discounting the future contractual cash flows at the current market interest rate that is available to the
Fund for similar financial instruments.
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SINCEPHETELO IVIOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

for the year ended i1 March 2019

INSURANCE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Fund accepts insurance risk as it is mandated by legislation to compensate victims of road accidents

for injuries suffered as a result of motor vehicle accidents. The Fund is exposed to uncertainty

surrounding the timing, frequency and severity of claims under these contracts'

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

Where necessary, comparative figures have been adjusted to conform with changes in presentation in

the current y"*. yfrA(i

6

7
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 March 2019

Fuel levies

Revenue

The analysis of fuel levies per oil fund in respect of fuel
imported and sold in the country is as follows:

Engen Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
Total Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
Galp Energia Swaziland (Proprietary) Limited
Puma Energy Swaziland (Pty) Ltd
Swaziland Petroleum
Swazi Oil
Gas and Oil Industries

Gross fuel levies
Less refunds to Eswatini Railways

Net fuel levies

2. Other operating income

Rental income
Profit/(loss) on disposal ofassets
Other income

3. Benefits and claims expenses

Reported claims charged during the year
Actuarial increase in undertaking liabilities
Actuarial decrease in outstanding claims liabilities

2019
E

I 13 846 368

2018
E

t06 372 959

l9 408 515
30 597 83 I
47 374 846
25 661 325

t3 248
4t 230

760

t9 435 654
29 320 377
45 644 202
22932186

123 097 755
(9 2sr 387)

tt7 332 4t9
10 9s9 460)(

I l3 846 368 106 372 959

3 314 084
514 928
755 779

3 504 52r
(2e 366)

4 069 863 3 475 155

88 756 186
20 015 778

(32 826 824)

145 sst 342
5 663 985

(63 867 sss)

75 945 140 87 347 772

krtl-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

4. Operating deficit

The following items have been charged in arriving at

the operating deficit:

Auditors remuneration
Consultancy fees
Depreciation of plant and equipment (note 7 and note 8)

Directors fees
Rates expense
Rent expense
Repairs and maintenance
Licences fees
Legal expenses
Employee benefit expenses (note 5)
Donations - Ingwenyama Cup
Travelling expenses
Training
Clinic consumables
Road safety

5. Employee benefit expense

Salaries and wages
Other benefits
Post-retirement benefits contributions
Medical aid contributions

6. Investment income - net
Investment income

- Dividend income
- Interest income
- Fair value gains

Interest income from staffloans and advances
Interest income from deposits with banks

2019

49 561 713
37t 72s

2 354 217
I 892 201

734 608
3 882 148

2t 3t3 002
604 091
144 953
423 tt5
295 188

347 032
907 787

54 r79 8s6
t3 512 592
4 t08 737
2 524 033
I 0r2 715
3 9r7 7ts

422984
3 015 023

23 274288
527 20r
564 552
326 324
479 293
535 253

t 486 120

22 046 792
4 930 134
t 959 276

626 814

20r8
E

4 488 r05

t9 214 892
l8 745

I 288 845
I 5243t0

E

54 179 8s6 22 046 792

l 686 490
23 586 938
7 5',76 9s9

s89 308

877 968
32 562 554

5 460
206 990

33 652 973

kfinh

Investment income
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3 I March 2019

7 PLANT AND EQ(IIP]VIENT

Motor vehicle

E tlEE

YEAR ENDED 3l March 2018

Carrying value at beginning ofthe year

Additions

Transfer to Investment Property

Transfer to non-current assets held for sale - net

Depreciation charge

Carrying value flt end of the year

5 643 508

t 364 750

Freehold land

and buildings

E

182 22t 047

9710281

Land

9 255 389

Equipment

E

9 159 523

7 440 563

284 288

Computer

equipment and

software

E

2 084926

677 212

73 283

Iledical
equipment

44907 t70

6205 733

'lbtal

253 27 I 563

25 398 539

357 571

| 464 t3t
(20 ee3 968)

3 t76744 (t 712 613)

(r 5sl 380) 667'.165)(7 (3142033) (r 083 983) (7 548 806)

5 456 878 t87 440 307 7 542776 13 742 341 I 75t 438 43 564 097 259 497 836

9 759 68t
(4 302 803)

r 96 990 891 7 542776 l7 559 65t

(3817310)
3 849 898 5l I 12 903

(7 548 806)

286 815 799

(27 3t7 963)(e ss0 584) (2 098 460)

s 456 878 t87 440 307 7 s42776 t3 742 341 I 751 438 43 564 097 2s9 497 836

Year'ended Jl March 2018

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value at end of the year

YEAR ENDED 3l March 2019

Carrying value at beginning ofthe year

Additions

Transfer from non-current assets held for sale

Transfer (to/from investment property

Depreciation charge

Carrying value at end of the year

5 4s6 878

3 439 968

tq't 440307

452 472

2 s73 520

7 542776

I s46 620

t3 742 341

5 794 294

21 048

I 751 438

I 448 919

43 561 097

67t 024

(4 878 800)

259 497 836

l 806 677

2 594 568

I 546 620

(2t 6t7 671)(l 30s r l8) (7 986 888) (6 159 067) (t 287 798)

7 sgt 728 t82 479 4lt 9 089 396 l3 398 616 l 912 559 39 356 321 253 828 03 |

Yearended3l March2019

Cost

Accumulated depreciation

Carrying value at end of the year

t3 199 649

(s 607 92t)
197 443 363

(t7 53'.7 472)

9 089 396 2t 570251

(8 le2 683)

5 298 817

(3 386 2s8)

5t 783 927

(12427 606)

298 385 403

(47 lsl 940)

7 59t 728 182 479 4ll

The offices of the Fund are located in Lot 43, Mbabane, Hhotrtro. 
kh,h
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3I March 2019

8. Investment property

Opening balance
Reclassification from PPE to investment property
Additions - newly constructed
Depreciation

Carrying value at year end

The investment property comprises the floors being let out
by the Fund in the SMVA Office Park, on Mbhilibhi Street,

Mbabane. The Fund apportioned the floors that are being
held for letting, to the total floor area of the office park in
determining the value of the Investment Property. Fair
values of the property will be determined on regular
intervals and apportioned on the same basis. The property
was ready for use in April 2017 and management is of the
view that the costs approximate the fair value of the
property.

9. Financial assets

Non-current

Old Mutual shares

Old Mutual
Swaziland Building Society - Permanent unlisted shares

Investments Managed by African Alliance:
- Stanlib
- Government bonds
- Sanlam

Cutent
Government Treasury Bills
Investments Managed by African Alliance:
- Lilangeni Fund
- Amandla Financial Services
- Fincorp Bonds

Total financial assets

2019
E

5l 413 895
(t s46 620)

93 735
(l 861 067)

2018
E

48 316 879
3 042 081
2 335 257
280

5l 413 89548 099 943

7 740 000
3t 524 709
4t 258 774

56 009 702
105 657 628
46 156 524

r0 035 134

9 413 680

53 275 228
126 220 753
4s 487 388

288 347 337 244 432 183

66 982 847

281 935

90 286 269
13 472288
l0 659 908

67 264 782 tt4 418 465
355 612 ttg 358 850 648

tirtnh
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FI.IND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATf,MENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3l March 2019

9 Financial assets (continued)

Government Treasury Bonds
The Fund invested in the bonds as follows:
r E50 000 000 on 3l October 2016. Maturity date - 31 October 2026.lnterest - 10.75% per

annum payable in October and April each year.
o E l0 000 000 on 3l August 2016. Maturity date - 3 1 August 2023.lnterest - 9o/o per annum

payable in February and August each year.
o E20 000 000 on 28 February 2017 . Maturity -28 August 2022.lnterest - 10.5% per annum

payable in February and December each year.
o E20 000000 on 30 June 2017. Maturity - 30 June 2024.Inlerest - 10.25o/o per annum

payable in December and June each year.

Fincorp Bonds

The Fund invested El0 000 000 bonds with Fincorp on 01 April20l5. Interest is at prime (10.3%)
reprised annually and accrues on 0l April and 0l October. The bonds were redeemed on 01 April
201 8.

Lilangeni Fund

The Fund holds investments with African Alliance which can be accessed with a 24 hour notice.

Ww(,
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

10. Fuel levy and other receivables

Fuel levies
Prepayments and sundry debtors
Staff loans and advances

The board ofdirectors believes that the above values offuel levy
and other receivables approximate fair value.

There is no concentration of credit risk with respect to fuel levy
and other receivables, as the Fund's fuel levies are less than 30
days past due and are not considered impaired. These relate to oil
companies for whom there is no recent history of default.
Accordingly, no impairment has been provided.

The Fund does not hold any collateral as security.

Fuel levy receivables that are less than one month past due are
not considered impaired. As of 3l March 2019, there were no fuel
levy receivables that were past due as such no impairment has

been provided. The carrying amounts of the Funds' fuel levy and
other receivables are denominated in the Eswatini Lilangeni.

11 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand
Cash at bank
Short term deposits with local banks

2019
E

10 320 089
2763 s62

349 561

2018
E

9 767 sss
944 669
421 343

t3 433 2t2 tl t33 567

4 783
14 451 805

tt3 075 677

86 019
28 545 411

102 886 69r

127 53226s 131 518 l2r

itiltt[r
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FTJND

NOTES TO THB FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the yeor ended 3l March 2019

12 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

The assets classified as held for sale are presented below, at
their carrying amounts:

Building
Office equipment

Reconciliation of the carrying value of the non-current assets
held for sale:

Carrying value at the beginning of the year
Movements:
- Transfer to plant and equipment
- Disposed during the year
- Transfer from non-current assets held for sale to PPE

Carrying value at end of year

Subsequent to year, the probability of the sale of these non-
current assets was low as there was no evidence to support
that the items will be sold in the next 12 months, hence
amounts were transferred back into PPE. y(vU(e

2019
E

2018
E

2 573 520
2t 048

2 594 568

2 594 568

(2 s94 s68)

3152382

(200 244)
(3s7 s70)

2 594 568
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINAI\ICIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

13 Trade and other payables

Trades payables

Other payables

14 Provision for employee benefits

Year ended 31 March 2019

Balance at 3l March 2018
Charged to statement of comprehensive income
Paid out during the year

Balance at 31 March 2019

Year ended 31 March 2018

Balance at3lMarch2}l7
Charged to statement of comprehensive income
Paid out during the year

2019
E

8 933 609
r8 s06

2018
E

3 464 324

3 464 324

Leave pay
E

I 019 116

2 148 560

Service gratuity
E

434 288
349 467
(6s s40)

Total

I 453 404
2 498 027

(6s s40)

E

3 167 676 718 215 3 885 891

349 885
669 231

422 319
745 025

(733 0s6)

772 204
t 414 2s6
(733 os6)

Balance at 31 March 2018 l0l9 l16 434 288 1 453 404

Gratuity
Gratuity is provided for in accordance with the contract basis renewable every three years for the

management and five years for staff. The provision is calculated at the fixed rate of the value of total annual
remuneration package of the contract or prorated to termination date multiplied by the number of
completed years of service.

Leave
Leave is provided for at the statutory provision rate. Employees and management are entitled to 24 leave

days per annum and 30 leave days per annum respectively, and can only carry over a maximum of l0 days
which are to be utilised within the subsequent year of service. Wnt

-56-
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

15 Undertakings liabilities

Non-current portion
Current portion

The reconciliation of undertaking liabilities is as follows
Discounted outstanding reported claims reserve
IBNR and IBNER claims reserve
Allowance for indirect claims handling expenses

At the end of the year

The liability of undertaking is in respect of future medical costs
and loss of support claims, where future medical and loss of
support expenses are anticipated. The liability is the present value
of future costs. The same actuarial principles, assumptions and
methodology used in the estimation of outstanding claims
liability's incurred but not reported (IBNR) were applied in the
estimation of the undertaking liabilities.

16 Outstanding claims liabilities

Non-current portion
Current portion

The reconciliation of outstanding claims liabilities is as follows
Gross outstanding reported claims
Gross IBNR reserve
Provision for changes in estimates
Effect of discounting on total claims reserve
Allowance for gross large claims
Allowance for gross reinsurance recoveries
Allowance for indirect claims handling expenses

2019
E

138 182 000
27 383 000

2018
E

l l7 210 000
24 404 000

165 565 000 141 614 000

I t3 587 000
3 I 998 000
19 980 000

79 133 000
41 851 000
20 630 000

165 565 000 l4l 614 000

89 426 000
4t 642 000

79 549 000
38 843 000

l3l 068 000 I l8 392 000

205 125 000
39 568 000

(r20 978 000)
(21 471 000)

l6 020 000
(r3 771 000)

26 575 000

162 078 000
34 317 000

(81 243 000)
(18 s82 000)

l6 020 000
(14 30s 000)

20 107 000

l l8 392 000At the end of the year

-57 -
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

16 Outstandingclaimsliabilities(continued)

Theliabilityasat3l March20l9is l}Yogreater thantheliabilityasat3l March2018.

The Fund establishes a claims liability account, which is an estimate of future payments for reported
(known) claims and unreported claims (Incurred But Not Reported, 'IBNR') with respect to events

which could result in an expense to the Fund. Provisioning is a complex process dealing with uncertainty
requiring the use of informed estimates and judgements. Any changes in the estimates are reflected in
the income statement in the period in which estimates are changed.

Delays occur in notification of claims and a substantial measure of experience and judgement is

involved in assessing outstanding liabilities, the ultimate cost of which cannot be known with certainty
as of the balance sheet date. The liability for claims is determined on the basis of information currently
available; however it is inherent in the nature of the business that the ultimate liability may vary as a

result of subsequent developments.

The rate of claims inflation selected needs to take account of the nature of the liability and, where
discounted reserves are held, be consistent with the discount rate that is selected.

Historical inflation (CPI index) figures supplied by the Fund to inflate past claims to present day values
were used. The inflation rate over the inter-valuation period was 5.3% year-on-year for end of March
2019.

Future inflation was allowed for at a rate of 60/o p.a. In the previous valuation, 6Yo was also used. The
real discount rate (i.e. excess of the discount rate over inflation) is now 2%op.a. and is the same as in
the previous valuation.

Discount rate
The discounted liability represents the net present value of all future payments, calculated at a specific
discount rate.

The discount rate was set at 8% p.a (20 I 8: 8%). and the real discount rate has been set at a rate of 2%o

(2018:2%)p.a.

Discounting cash flows at a higher discount rate reduces the present value of the liability. The important
assumption in the escalation and discounting process is the real discount rate. The real discount rate
used for the current valuation is 2%.

The outstanding claims liability represents the value of the Fund's obligations, under the terms of the
existing legislation to compensate people injured as a result of motor vehicle accidents (or their
dependants in the case offatalities).

Proj e cti on of fut ur e c laims n o tifi c ati on
The ultimate claim numbers have been projected using a Bomhuetter-Ferguson projection method. The
projection builds on the number of claims that have already been notihed to the Fund, to estimate the
number of claims that will be notified in future in respect of accidents that already have occurred up
until the valuation date. These claims are also known as Incurred But Not Reported claims (IBNR
claims). kBm(X

-58-



M
SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINAI\CIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

l6 Outstanding claims liability (continued)

Summary of assumptions and methodology (continued)

A brief description of this methodology is discussed below

Methodologjt

(a) Payments Per Claim Incurred (PPCD
The PPCI method models the claims process by assuming that the payments will develop in a

predictable pattern over time. The method requires assumptions regarding:
n The ultimate number of claims incurred for each accident year

The average claim size

tr The distribution of payments over time

n Future claims inflation rate(s)

For the latest accident year, this method essentially estimates the number of claims that will ultimately
be reported for the year, and the average claim size.
(b) Bornhuetter-Ferguson projection of claim numbers

As noted above, the PPCI method requires a projection of the number of claims that will ultimately
be reported for each year's accidents. The Bomhuetter-Ferguson (BHF) method has been used to do
this projection.

The BHF method uses an independent me.Nure to determine the likely ultimate number of claims for
each accident year. The independent measure used for the analysis was sales ofpetrol and diesel.
I Bssic Chain Ladder (BCL) or Link-ratio method

Link ratios are calculated between the development years of each of the accident years in the triangle
and are combined as weighted average development factors for each development year. Such a set of
development factors are called Basic Chain-ladder development factors.

The derived development factors are used to project the claims expected to emerge in the future
development periods.

Once the claims have been projected and the ultimate level of claims established, the difference
between the ultimate projected claims and claims paid to date represents the amount of claims reserve
required (i.e. OCR + IBNR + IBNER). V,,te
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3I March 2019

17. a) Analysis of financial assets and liabilities by measurement

Financial assets and financial liabilities are measured in an ongoing basis either at fair value or amortised cost. The

summary of significant accounting policies describes how the classes of financial instruments are measured and how

income and expenses, including fair value gains are recognised. The following table analyses the carrying amounts

of the financial assets and liabilities by category:

3l March 2019

Financial assets
Financial assets

Fuel levy and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims liabilities
Undertaking liabilities
Trade and other payables

31 March 2018

Financial assets
Financial assets

Fuel levy and other receivables

Cash and cash equivalents

Financial liabilities
Outstanding claims liabilities
Undertaking liabilities
Trade and other payables

Financial
Asset at

Fair value
Through OCI

E

Financial
Asset at

Fair value
Through p/l

E

t4t 430 395

Financial
Asset at

amortised
cost

E

214 tgt 724
t3 433 212

r27 532265

Financial
liabilities at

amortised
cost

E
Total

E

355 6t2 ll9
t3 433 212

127 532265

355 147 201 496 577 596

13r 068 000
165 565 000

8 952 115

131 068 000
165 565 000

8952 l15

305 585 I 15 305 585 I I 5

108 797 ',t50 250 052 898
ll 133 567

13l 518 r2l

358 850 648
ll 133 567

l3l 518 12l

r08 797 750 392 704 s86 501 502 336

ll8 392 000
14l 614 000

3 464 324

l t8 392 000
141 614 000

3 464 324

263 470324 263 470324

k?uk
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SINCEPHETELO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

for the year ended 3I Morch 2019

17. b) Liquidity analysis

31 March 2019

Financial assets

Financial assets

Fuel levy and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Totsl assets

Financial and insurance liabilities

Outstanding claims liabilities
Undertaking liabilities
Trade and other payables
Provisions for other liabilities and charges

31 March 2018

Financial assets

Financial assets

Fuel lery and other receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Total assets

Financiul utd insuronce lifi ilities

Outstanding claims liabilities
Undertaking liabilities
Trade and other payables

Provisions for other liabilities and charges

208230259 288349 337

Less than I
month or
available/

payable on
demand

E

67 264782
t3 433 212

127 53226s

More than I
month but

less than
5 years

E

More than
5 years

E
Total

E

355 612 119
13 433 212

127 532265

288 347 337

496 577 596

4t 642 000
27 383 000
8952 r15
3 885 894

78 259 000
82 334 000

I I 167 000
55 848 000

l3l 068 000
165 565 000

8952115
3 885 894

8l 863 009 160 593 000 67 015 000 309 471 009

114 418 465
l1 133 567

13l 518 12r

244 432 183 358 850 648
1l 133 567

13l 518 l2l
257 070 153 244 432 183 501 502 336

38 843 000
24 404 000
3 464 324
t 4s3 404

70 566 000
70 s89 000

8 983 000
46 621 000

l l8 392 000
l4l 614 000

3 464 324
I 453 404

68 164728 l4l 155 000 55 604 000 264923 728
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NOTBS TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
for the year ended 31 March 2019

18 Cash generated from operations

Deficit for the year
Adjustmentsfor:
Depreciation (note 7 and 8)
Investment income (note 6)
Profit/(loss) from sale of PPE

Net changes in working copital
Increase in fuel levy and other receivable
Increase in inventory
Increase/(decrease) in trade and other payable
Increase in undertaking liabilities
Increase in outstanding claims liability
Increase in provisions for other liabilities and charges

Cash utilised by operations

19 Related party transactions

The Fund was established by an Act of Parliament as an
instrument by which the Government of Eswatini
compensates road accidents victims who suffered bodily
injuries or loss of support following death of breadwinners.

19.1 Related pafi transoctions:
a) Board of directors compensation

Board of directors fees

The board of directors is remunerated on retainer and
attendance of board meetings.

19.2 Year end balances arisingfrom related porties
a) Receivable from relaiid parties

Key management - staff loans

20t9
E

2t 617 671
(33 seg 299)

(sl4 928)

2018
E

23 274 290
(33 6s2973)

29 366

(60 067 e80) (28 001 09s)

(72 s63 s36) (38 3s0 412)

4t 265 273 4t 057 24s
(2 2ee 64s)

(e82 363)
5 487 791

23 95 I 000
12 676 000

(s38 37e)

(324 476)
r2 867 000
24 485 000

2 432 490 681 200

(31 298 263 ) (l 180 067)

607 918 527 201

W*h
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SINCEPHETBLO MOTOR VEHICLE ACCIDENT FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMBNTS (continued)

for the year ended 31 March 2019

19 Related party transactions (continues)

19.2 Year end balances arisingfrom related parties

bl Payables lo related parties

Key management - gratuity

2019
E

935 993

201 8

E

434 288

Gratuity provision/ payable is made for payments in accordance with the contract basis renewable
every three years. The payable is calculated at the rate of 25%o of the value of total annual
remuneration package of the contractor as at terminal date multiplied by the number of completed
years ofservice.

20 Commitments and contingencies

20.1 Commitments
As at 31 March 20l9,the Fund had no commitments

20.2 Contingencies

The Fund has no contingent liabilities in respect of legal claims arising in the ordinary coursc of
its operations. All known liabilities have been provided for in these financial statements.

2t

o It is not anticipated that any material liabilities will arise from contingent liabilities.

Events after statement of financial position date

The directors are not aware of any events that have occurred subsequent to year end that could
impact the amounts presented in the financial statements and:

(a) apart from changes in the ordinary course ofbusiness, have not made the present financial
position substantially different from that shown by the balance sheet date;

(b) apart from changes in the ordinary course ofbusiness, have not made the present financial
position substantially different from that shown by the balance sheet date

(c) have not required adjustments to the fair value measurements and disclosures included in
the financial statements.

22 Income Tax exemption

The Fund is exempt from taxation in terms of the provision of section 5 (2) of The Motor Vehicle
Accidents Act No.13 of l99l as amended. As at the date of these financial statements, the Fund had
not received an income tax exemption certificate from the Eswatini Revenue Authority. W

a
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